# MINUTES INTERCITY TRANSIT AUTHORITY COMMUNITY ADVISORY COMMITTEE JOINT MEETING September 21, 2022

#### **CALL TO ORDER**

Chair Gilman called the September 21, 2022, Joint Meeting of the Intercity Transit Authority (ITA) and Community Advisory Committee (CAC) to order at 5:30 p.m. This meeting was held remotely, with an in-person component at the Pattison Street facility.

**ITA Members Present:** Chair and City of Olympia Mayor Pro-Tem Clark Gilman; Vice Chair and Citizen Representative Justin Belk; City of Tumwater Mayor Debbie Sullivan; City of Lacey Councilmember Robin Vazquez; City of Yelm Councilmember Brian Hess; Citizen Representative Don Melnick; Citizen Representative Sue Pierce.

**ITA Members Absent:** Thurston County Commissioner Carolina Mejia; and Labor Representative Paul Tischer.

**CAC Members Present:** David Bonauto; Nikki Crist; Ursula Euler; John Gear; Jihan Grettenberger; Walter Smit; Ty Flint; Betty Hauser; Lloyd Peterson.

**CAC Members Absent:** Gene Angel; Jonah Cummings; Allison Spector; Marie Lewis; Joan O'Connell; Marilyn Scott; Eliane Wilson; Nathan Ramos; Natalie Smith; Edwina Waehling; Rachel Weber.

**Staff Present:** Ann Freeman-Manzanares; Steve Krueger; Pat Messmer; Eric Phillips; Jonathon Yee; Alex Auty; Ramon Beltran; Heather Stafford Smith; Brian Nagel; Nicky Upson; Rob LaFontaine; Katie Cunningham; Jason Aguero; Daniel Van Horn; Michael Maverick; Cindy Waterhouse; Steve Swan; Cameron Crass; Rob Rinehart; Jeff Peterson; Emily Bergkamp; Joy Gerchak; Kyle McPherson; Riley White; Magic Aguinaga; Zach Heinemeyer; Alihaundra Borja; Andrew Scarborough; Nancy Trail.

**Others Present:** Jason Robertson from JRO & Associates and Thomas Wittmann from Nelson Nygaard.

#### APPROVAL OF AGENDA

It was M/S/A by Sullivan and Pierce to approve the agenda.

**PUBLIC COMMENT:** No public comments were received.

#### STAFF INTRODUCTIONS

- A. Operator Class 22-04 (Cameron Crass)
- B. Andrew Scarborough, Network Systems Analyst (Rob Rinehart)
- C. Alihaundra Borja, Commuter Services Assistant (Cindy Waterhouse)

Intercity Transit Authority/Community Advisory Committee Joint Meeting September 21, 2022 Page 2 of 15

**INTRODUCTIONS:** The Authority and CAC members provided self-introductions.

#### APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS

It was M/S/A by Vazquez and Pierce to approve the consent agenda items as presented.

- **A. Approval of Minutes:** August 17, 2022, Regular Meeting.
- **B. Payroll for August**: \$3,151,020.32
- C. Accounts Payable August: Warrant numbers 35208-35235 dated August 2 in the amount of \$781,733.87; numbers 35238-35263 dated August 6 in the amount of \$103,639.30; numbers 35264-35283 dated August 11 in the amount of \$541,296.70; numbers 35284-35314 dated August 13 in the amount of \$558,021.39; numbers 35326-35344 dated August 19 in the amount of \$105,100.89; numbers 35345-35381 dated August 24 in the amount of \$462,123.38; for a total amount of \$2,551,915.53; and Automated Clearing House Transfers in the amount of \$13,741.26 for a monthly total of \$2,565,656.79.

#### **NEW BUSINESS**

**A. Phase IV Early Bid Package.** Eric Phillips submitted for approval the authorization of securing the electrical equipment and system components needed to energize the Maintenance Building by the March of 2023 full construction start date.

As Forma nears completion of all North Parcel construction work, they are concurrently preparing for the Phase IV South Parcel renovation work slated to begin in March of 2023 and finish up in late 2025. The first order of business of the South Parcel will be to update the existing power service to the site and install new electrical equipment needed to energize the Maintenance Building which is currently serviced via the Administration Building which will be demolished as part of the final Phase of construction. Because of the long lead times for this electrical equipment, it's vital for orders to be placed now to better protect our schedule. The total not to exceed amount for this equipment (Main Service Disconnect, South Yard Switchboard, Breaker, and Generator Package) is \$649,400 including taxes.

Unlike the North Parcel Construction where the Maximum Allowable Construction Cost (MACC) for the entire North Parcel work was negotiated and approved in advance of construction, with today's highly volatile marketplace coupled with the lengthy product lead times and uncertainty over completion

# Intercity Transit Authority/Community Advisory Committee Joint Meeting September 21, 2022 Page 3 of 15

dates, our project team is recommending an early bid package to reduce the risk of project delay and cost escalation.

Overall, under the current construction climate, we believe a better approach to the final phase of the Pattison Construction project is to negotiate a series of bid packages that coincide with the start of each of the four planned construction phases thereby ensuring pricing reflects current market conditions. We have previously referred to these as "mini" MACC's or trade specific MACC's. Currently the project team envisions the project utilizing four (4) MACC packages for the Phase IV South Parcel work including: 1) Electrical Equipment, 2) Site Work, 3) Auxiliary Structure, 4) Maintenance Building Renovation work.

Later this fall we'll be providing the Authority with a high-level overview of these four different design phases as well as an updated cost estimate for the Phase IV South Parcel construction design based on our best assessment of the current market conditions. We'll also be seeking ITA construction funding approval based on that amount and then as the construction phases progress, we'll report back to the ITA the amount of each MACC negotiation and potentially seek additional funding, if necessary, for the final construction phase. Most immediately, staff recommend approval of the Electrical Equipment Package MACC for a total not to exceed amount of \$649,400 to better ensure the equipment that has a long lead time arrives for the March 2023 targeted construction date.

It was M/S/A by Pierce and Melnick to authorize the General Manager to execute approvals under our existing contract for services with the Washington State Department of Enterprise Services with our GCCM contractor (Forma Construction) supporting an early bid package for the new electrical equipment and site work for the initial South Parcel Phase IV rehabilitation electrical upgrade work for a total not to exceed amount of \$649,400 including taxes.

B. Surplus DAL Vehicle 150. Katie Cunningham presented Dial-A-Lift (DAL) vehicle no. 150 as surplus. DAL 150, a 2011 Chevrolet El Dorado E-450 cutaway, was involved in an accident in January of 2022. Based on an assessment provided by WSTIP, Intercity Transit's insurance provider, the total estimated pre-accident fair market of the vehicle is \$17,865. The estimated cost to repair the damage of this vehicle exceeded the fair market value, and the vehicle has therefore been deemed a total loss. This vehicle has met useful life requirements and its replacement is currently on order. The recommended action is to work through WSTIP to facilitate sale of the vehicle through its salvage dealers. Based on the information provided herein, staff is requesting the Authority declare DAL 150 as surplus.

# Intercity Transit Authority/Community Advisory Committee Joint Meeting September 21, 2022 Page 4 of 15

DAL 150 was originally purchased using local funds. No Federal or State grant funds were used in the purchase of this vehicle. The insurance remittance for the remaining value of the vehicle (\$12,865 for the value of the vehicle, less the insurance deductible) will be credited as local funds available for future agency projects.

It was M/S/A by Vazquez and Melnick to declare Dial-A-Lift vehicle 150 as surplus.

C. State Advocacy Contract Renewal. Katie Cunningham presented for renewal the State Legislative Advocacy Services contract with Foster Government Relations for an additional year.

In October 2021, Foster Government Relations won Intercity Transit's contract for State Legislative Advocacy Services. The initial contract term was for a period of one year, with four one-year renewal options. This item represents the second one-year renewal. The annual contract renewal amount remains the same as the original term.

Intercity Transit has worked with Foster Government Relations for the past six years and has been satisfied with the firm's representation of our interests during this time. Foster Government Relations has provided valuable consulting services in support of the development, communication, and implementation of Intercity Transit's legislative agenda with the Washington State Legislature and Executive Branch. As funding, policy rules, and regulations remain uncertain, the need for Intercity Transit's interests to stay engaged in Washington State legislation continues.

Staff believes Foster Government Relations will continue to provide valuable services at fair and reasonable rates and recommends approval of the contract extension with this firm.

It was M/S/A by Belk and Sullivan to authorize the General Manager to execute a one-year contract extension with Foster Government Relations to provide State Legislative Advocacy Services in the amount of \$48,000.

**D. Federal Advocacy Contract Renewal.** Katie Cunningham presented for renewal the Federal Advocacy Services contract with Gordon Thomas Honeywell Governmental Affairs for an additional year.

In October 2018, Gordon Thomas Honeywell Governmental Affairs won Intercity Transit's new contract for Federal Advocacy Services. The initial contract term was for a period of one year, with four one-year renewal options. This item represents the fourth one-year renewal.

# Intercity Transit Authority/Community Advisory Committee Joint Meeting September 21, 2022 Page 5 of 15

The annual contract amount reflects a rate increase from the previous term in the total annual amount of \$4,200. This amounts to a 5% increase which was requested by Gordon Thomas Honeywell Governmental Affairs due to persistent inflation and is commensurate with increases identified the Consumer Price Index.

Intercity Transit has been satisfied with Gordon Thomas Honeywell Governmental Affair's representation of its interests over the past fourteen years. The firm has been a valuable partner in assisting Intercity Transit to secure available funding. As federal funding, policy, rules, and regulations remain uncertain, the need for Intercity Transit's interests to stay engaged in Washington DC continues. It remains beneficial for Intercity Transit to have an advocate in Washington DC to ensure our priorities and points of view are considered while legislation and regulations are developed and implemented.

Staff believes Gordon Thomas Honeywell Governmental Affairs will continue to provide valuable services at fair and reasonable rates and recommends that a contract extension with Gordon Thomas Honeywell Governmental Affairs is approved.

It was M/S/A by Vazquez and Belk to authorize the General Manager to execute a contract amendment with Gordon Thomas Honeywell Governmental Affairs to renew the contract for Federal Advocacy Services for a period of one year in the amount of \$88,200.

**E. Vanpool Vehicle Purchase.** Katie Cunningham presented for consideration the purchase of twelve (12) replacement vanpool vehicles.

Intercity Transit received a Vanpool Investment Program (VIP) grant award from the Washington State Department of Transportation (WSDOT) to replace vanpool vans which have reached their useful life. To utilize this award, Intercity Transit seeks to purchase twelve (12) Toyota Sienna hybrid minivans from Toyota of Yakima under Washington State Department of Enterprise Services (DES) Contract 05916 to serve as replacement vehicles. The grant funding will cover approximately 71% of the total vehicle cost.

DES competitively bid this contract awarding to the lowest, responsive and responsible bidder for each vehicle class, and Toyota of Yakima was selected for this vehicle class. As a member of the Washington State Purchasing Cooperative, Intercity Transit is eligible to purchase from this contract.

Intercity Transit staff concurs with DES's assessment regarding fair and reasonable pricing and Toyota of Yakima's ability to perform. Based on our past experience with Toyota of Yakima and Toyota Sienna minivans, staff is confident

# Intercity Transit Authority/Community Advisory Committee Joint Meeting September 21, 2022 Page 6 of 15

these vehicles are mechanically sound and will serve our vanpool customers well. The twelve (12) replacement vans would potentially be delivered by the end of this year.

It was M/S/A by Melnick and Sullivan to authorize the General Manager, pursuant to Washington State Contract 05916, to purchase twelve (12) replacement Toyota Sienna minivans from Toyota of Yakima in the amount of \$455,760.

**F. Purchase TSP Equipment.** Jeff Peterson submitted for authorization the purchase of Transit Signal Prioritization Equipment utilizing an existing contract pursuant to implementation of the regional Smart Corridors program.

In July 2016 Intercity entered into a contract with ACT Traffic Solutions to provide equipment supporting the Transit Signal Prioritization implementation aspect of the regional Smart Corridor project. Equipment purchased will be installed on all Intercity Transit fixed route coaches and at approximately thirty signalized intersections along the designated corridors. More intersections may be added to the project following the initial deployments.

In October 2021 Intercity Transit onboarded Iteris Inc. to support the implementation of TSP as part of the regional Smart Corridor implementation project. Following development of a regional coordination process and completing interlocal agreements with the participating partners the project is now moving forward with implementation which includes installing TSP equipment on our entire fleet and at project intersections.

The required project equipment will be purchased utilizing our agreement with ACT Traffic Solutions Inc. which distributes the Emtrac system. Purchases will likely be made using two or more separate purchase orders in accordance with the terms and pricing under our current contract. The pricing and services proposed are fair and reasonable under this agreement.

The staff recommendation is to authorize the General Manager to purchase the required TSP equipment, components, and support from ACT Traffic Solutions Inc. for a total not to exceed cost of \$550,000 for new purchases which includes taxes and product support thru installation. The equipment purchases are supported by an FTA grant that is expected to cover the cost of the equipment at about 80%. These grant funds are specific to the TSP equipment and are separate for an additional grant award supporting the implementation support for Smart Corridors.

It was M/S/A by Pierce and Vazquez to authorize the General Manager to purchase transit signal priority equipment utilizing an existing contract with Intercity Transit Authority/Community Advisory Committee Joint Meeting September 21, 2022
Page 7 of 15

ACT Traffic Solutions Inc. for the acquisition of transit signal priority equipment for installation on busses and to be deployed at project intersections for a total cost not-to-exceed \$550,000 for new purchases, inclusive of taxes.

G. Road Trip Revival and Long-Range Plan Overview. Intercity Transit engaged the services of Jason Robertson (JRO & Associates) and Thomas Wittmann (Nelson Nygaard) to work alongside the ITA, the CAC and staff to lead an intensive, multi-phased public outreach effort to engage stakeholders and the public in a community conversation, which was entitled IT Road Trip. This two-year community engagement process informed the development of IT Proposition 1 approved by voters in November 2018, as well as IT's Short and Long-Range Plan, which the Authority adopted in November 2018.

Plan implementation began immediately with a 24% increase in service between December 2018 and mid-March 2020. In addition, the Authority studied and approved a Zero-Fare Demonstration Project in 2019, which began January 2020.

Freeman-Manzanares said this joint meeting is a good opportunity to revisit that pivotal time in IT history for those who were with IT during that 2016 through early 2020 timeframe and to introduce the elements of the public engagement process, entitled "IT Road Trip" and our Long-Range Plan to new Authority, Community Advisory Committee members and staff.

Freeman-Manzanares said Robertson and Wittmann will talk about the unexpected interruption to our great progress implementing the community directed Long-Range transit enhancement plan, and how it continues to be impacted from a local and national perspective.

Freeman-Manzanares said before COVID and during the 2015-2016 timeframe, IT had significant hurdles to overcome. The federal government eliminated dollars previously dedicated to public transportation, and IT had to significantly overhaul its financial structure. At the same time, there was a call in the community for additional transit services within our Public Transportation Benefit Area, and the sense that we could provide additional service wherever and whenever it was desired, and IT couldn't afford to do that. The community had grown significantly and was expected to continue growing, which would increase the call for public transportation and only worsen our congestion issues. The cost to provide services were increasing.

Freeman-Manzanares continued that IT spent three legislative sessions, 2016-2018, requesting the state legislature allow us the opportunity to ask voters whether or not they wished to support transit at an additional 4/10<sup>th</sup> of 1 percent. Otherwise, IT needed to eliminate 40% of our services or be in the red by 2023. With the direction of our community, the leadership of our Authority

# Intercity Transit Authority/Community Advisory Committee Joint Meeting September 21, 2022 Page 8 of 15

and support from the Community Advisory Committee and staff, IT will enter 2023 on a far happier note.

Freeman-Manzanares introduced Jason Robertson. Robertson reviewed the IT Road Trip process that included outreach, input, interim results and public review. Over 3,500 people shared their thoughts, with 10,000 unique ideas and Robertson/Wittmann sorted through all of them while looking at what type of efficiencies IT could make without additional funding. Robertson reviewed the different ways they engaged with the public, and the different types of events and outreach. They continued to partner goal alignment working behind the scenes with city planners, and college presidents to broaden community goals.

The road trip team went back to community with nine things the community asked for known as the nine promises made to the community:

- 1. **Extended Span of Service -** Service starts earlier, ends later, operates on weekends
- 2. **Improved Frequency –** Busy routes g to 15-minute service; all others 30-minute
- 3. **Service to New Areas -** Bus/Dial-A-Lift will be extended to new and growing areas
- 4. **On-Time Performance –** Put additional buses into service as congestion increases
- 5. **Enhanced Capital Facilities –** Better bus stops with shelters, benches, and lighting
- 6. **Bus Rapid Transit -** High-frequency, direct, comfortable and cost-effective service
- 7. **Night Owl Service -** On-demand, late night service to and from downtown
- 8. **Enhanced Commuter Service –** Express from Olympia-Lacey to Lakewood-Tacoma.
- 9. **Fare-Collection Efficiencies –** Easier pay options to reduce delay, simplify access

Robertson reviewed several examples of expanded service i.e., Yelm Walmart / Lacey Transit Center Express and stand-alone route to connect NE Lacey job center with the Lacey Transit Center. Robertson reviewed the Bus Rapid Transit and enhanced service costs. He reviewed the Zero-Fare transit solution and future transit scenarios.

Robertson said the team went back to the public with three future transit scenarios (service reductions, status quo system or transformation system) and conducted an informal poll that showed 67% of the public were onboard supporting a transformation system. The team hired Elway to do a scientific poll and the first question asked was if it was worth \$2-\$5 per month to make all

# Intercity Transit Authority/Community Advisory Committee Joint Meeting September 21, 2022 Page 9 of 15

improvements and 67% of the public responded yes. The Elway poll asked if the public were willing to actually pay for this and the results showed 68% of the public in favor of supporting a sales tax measure. With that the ITA approved a resolution to go out for Proposition 1 Sales Tax initiative that took place on November 6, 2018.

Robertson shared that as IT gets back on the road trip, it's still tough out there with near universal labor shortages, rapidly rising rent and cost of living, persistent worker/rider trepidation and logistics and supply change uncertainty. He said due to all of this uncertainty, with what Intercity Transit offers has never been more important, especially with zero-fare transit helping people get to work reducing one aspect of their cost of living. It's critical to keep the nine promises the public is paying for and deliver the services expected.

Freeman-Manzanares said it's important to recognize from an internal administrative perspective, we have been understaffed since at least 2016. We were hesitant to bring new individuals on staff when we thought there might be the need to let them go if our ballot measure wasn't successful. Once the ballot measure passed in late 2018, our energy was focused on being responsive to our voters and getting service on the street as quickly as possible. That involved hiring over 100 individuals in 2019 primarily focused on Operators and some maintenance staff. She said it would be remiss not to recognize the tremendous efforts staff made carrying IT through the public engagement process, educating the public on IT Proposition 1, quickly implementing the first phases of expanded service, which equated to a 24% increase (in less than 16 months), then responding to an intense level of work, over a long period of time, associated with responding to the COVID-19 pandemic. She appreciates the opportunity to share how amazing the people are who work Intercity Transit. They carried us through some monumental and really difficult parts of our history, allowing us to deliver public transit services to the community.

Freeman-Manzanares said IT is making a concentrated effort to get fully staffed up. We are implementing NeoGov on our website, which is a well-known resource utilized by many public sectors and education organizations to enhance our recruitment efforts. We are fully staff in Human Resources and have a dedicated recruiter for outreach efforts, and we are utilizing additional staff members to connect with job seekers. We are attending in-person job fairs, which was a resource that was unavailable over the last several years. One of the notable sites is at JBLM where we will attend seven more job fairs between now and the end of the year, and we have connections with CDL schools.

Staff is working with Marketing and Communications consultants to produce numerous ads to connect with job seekers. Freeman-Manzanares shared samples

### Intercity Transit Authority/Community Advisory Committee Joint Meeting September 21, 2022 Page 10 of 15

of what has been created and will be sharing throughout Thurston, Mason, Lewis, Grays Harbor and Pierce Counties.

Freeman-Manzanares shared a recruitment video, and advertisements, encouraging individuals to check out Intercity Transit as an employer of choice. She encouraged everyone to share these materials with friends, family, associates. Freeman-Manzanares introduced Thomas Wittmann.

Wittmann reviewed today's challenges and what's happening with other transit agencies across the country.

#### **Peer Experiences - Ridership**

- Nationwide ridership average for buses is ~60% of pre-covid numbers
- Smaller agencies are closer to pre-covid numbers driven by a greater incidence of high need riders
- Intercity Transit is at ~60% of pre-pandemic ridership with 74% of pre-covid service
  - One of the big factors is fare free

### Peer Experiences - Funding

- CARES funding has helped agencies withstand the fiscal impacts of the pandemic
- As CARES expires, many agencies, particularly larger ones, are forecasting financial shortfalls
- Intercity Transit is well positioned to account for CARES funding going away.

The Road Map created a sustainable future, even with the pandemic impacts

# Peer Experiences - Remote Work

- In-office five-day workweek is not coming back anytime soon
- Nationwide, commuter routes and commuter rail have had the slowest ridership recovery, even though traffic levels are close to pre-pandemic
- Nationwide, most commuter routes are only 20-30% of pre-pandemic ridership
- Impacts for Intercity Transit
- State workers represent a market that is only slowly coming back
- Olympia Express is still significantly underperforming

# Peer Experiences - Post Secondary Education

- Colleges and Universities have been seeing declining enrollment
- Community Colleges have seen even larger declines
- Impacts for Intercity Transit
  - Students have been a huge market

# Intercity Transit Authority/Community Advisory Committee Joint Meeting September 21, 2022

Page 11 of 15

 Evergreen State College enrollment has dropped from ~5,000 to under 2,000

#### Peer Experiences - Factors inhibiting ridership return

- Surveys nationwide show common themes:
  - o Fear of getting sick Will I get Covid on transit?
  - Physical safety fears Will I get assaulted on transit?
  - o Reliability Will my bus/train show up when it should?
  - Service levels aren't what they used to be (not as frequent, not late, etc.)
  - Desire to not waste time commuting Why commute when I can work at home?
- Impacts for Intercity Transit
  - IT can control reliability and service levels, but not some of the larger trends/fears

#### Peer Experiences - Staff Shortages

- Most systems have an operator shortage and have cut service
- Most systems are not at pre-pandemic service levels

### Impacts for Intercity Transit

- IT hired over 100 people in 2019 (mostly operators) to expand service 24%
- Today, IT has been unable to restore service due to operator shortages
- IT is executing plan to build back up operator numbers
- All staff have been pressed due to Covid impacts

# Peer Experiences - Ways to address operator shortages

- Replace/augment commuter routes with vanpool service
  - Lower costs, even if agency gives away a van
  - Challenge vanpools are less effective with flexible work schedules
- Operate evening service with on-demand
  - Allows for expansion of later service with smaller IT operator pool
  - More flexible service during evening times
  - Not new idea: in the Road Map, late evening service was be ondemand
  - Could be contracted
  - New service type will require set up time to successfully implement

# Peer Experiences - Bringing riders back

- Things Intercity Transit is doing to bring back riders:
  - Zero-fare
  - Added security personnel and Operations Supervisors to provide a secure environment and act as ambassadors
  - Enhanced cleaning protocols

# Intercity Transit Authority/Community Advisory Committee Joint Meeting September 21, 2022 Page 12 of 15

- Are about to improved rider information through "myStop" app that is tied to CAD/AVL roll-out
- This reflects a national playbook to bring riders back.

Wittmann shared his final thoughts and said Intercity Transit does not face a funding challenge. However, the one challenge IT has is the lack of Operators and this is a nationwide phenomenon. However, IT does have a plan to address operator shortages, which is hampering the return to pre-pandemic service levels.

Melnick suggested finding a way to tell the public again about the things they asked for and here's the challenges IT is facing.

Euler asked if there are trends emerging with the post pandemic way riders are using the system, since so many of the public work from home. Wittmann said the market is still unsettled and it's difficult to see exactly what's going on and separate the correlation and causation. Around 50% of all trips pre COVID were work trips on IT. There was already a huge amount of trip making that had nothing to do with work. They are seeing a bigger emphasis on mid-day service and evening service over peek commuter service.

Smit is interested in more data about Operator retention and hiring, and what have Operators been saying, and how has that affected the numbers for hiring/retention. Freeman-Manzanares said we can share that information because HR has been tracking that closely and looking at what transit systems are doing throughout the state as well as the nation in terms of retention bonuses and pay and pausing to identify what's really working and not working to define what we need to do. IT has been working to be an employer of choice with happy employees.

Hess said IT is doing a wonderful job in reference to being one of the first systems to go zerofare. He suggested IT reinforce to the public that zero fare isn't "free", but it's paid with taxes and by doing so takes more cars off the road. He's looking forward to when an express type of service comes to Yelm.

Gilman is excited about this reboot of the IT road trip, and he's committed to the nine areas of improvement, and as we emerge from COVID there's room to refine and tweak this and able to respond to changes in the workforce. He said the Authority made a set of promises to the voters to transform the agency to provide transportation and mobility to the whole community.

Pierce wants to remind the public it's going to take time, but the agency is still working on making these service enhancements.

#### **COMMITTEE REPORTS**

**Thurston Regional Planning Council (Sept. 2):** Melnick attended on Mayor Sullivan's behalf. He reported:

# Intercity Transit Authority/Community Advisory Committee Joint Meeting September 21, 2022 Page 13 of 15

Volunteers were appointed to the 2023 Work Program Subcommittee and the Legislative Session Subcommittee.

Paul Brewster reviewed TRPC's Revised Call for Projects Process details. The objectives for the Call for Projects Process revisions are to:

- 1. Provide direct ties between project selection and the region's performance goals and targets.
- 2. Create a fair and competitive process with clear evaluation criteria.
- 3. Improve the region's ability to meet annual obligation targets.
- 4. Improve opportunities to leverage additional federal funding.

Revisions on the Call for Projects Process include regional funding priorities, regional evaluation criteria, and funding set-asides and caps. The full presentation can be found here: <a href="https://www.trpc.org/DocumentCenter/View/11291/A12\_TRPC-Federal-Funding-Call-for-Projects-Process">https://www.trpc.org/DocumentCenter/View/11291/A12\_TRPC-Federal-Funding-Call-for-Projects-Process</a>

The Council approved the details and timeline for the 2022 Call for Projects, which will use the revised process. Details can be found here: <u>Federal Funding Call for Projects | Thurston Regional Planning Council, WA (trpc.org)</u>

Council was briefed on the draft Regional Transportation Improvement Program (RTIP). The draft RTIP can be found here: <a href="mailto:Draft-RTIP\_2023-2026\_All\_(trpc.org">Draft-RTIP\_2023-2026\_All\_(trpc.org</a>). Council will take action to approve the draft RTIP at their October meeting.

#### Transportation Policy Board (Sept. 14): Melnick reported:

The Board received the same presentations as TRPC - The Call for Projects and the draft 2023-2026 Regional Transportation Improvement Program (RTIP). The Board recommended the Council adopt the RTIP at their October 7, 2022, meeting.

Karen Parkhurst provided an update on the Human Services Transportation Plan (HSTP). To qualify for certain funding, federal and state law requires the Council adopt and update a HSTP. The goals of the Plan are to:

- Increase equity in transportation services.
- Increase mobility options.
- Improve individual service.
- Increase coordination with other systems and programs.
- Improve efficiency.
- Identify and obtain sustainable funding to close gaps.
- Broadly distribute information about available transportation options.

The Plan is out for public review through October 31, 2022 and the full presentation can be found here: <u>Coordinated Public Transit Human Services Transportation Plan</u> (<u>trpc.org</u>)

Intercity Transit Authority/Community Advisory Committee Joint Meeting September 21, 2022
Page 14 of 15

#### GENERAL MANAGER'S REPORT

This is the Week Without Driving Challenge sponsored by Disabilities Rights Washington. Veronica Jarvis at Thurston Regional Planning Council is cheering on all of the Employee Transportation Coordinators throughout the county, as is Disabilities Right Washington.

The Pattison construction project continues to move forward. The Admin/Ops Building is almost complete. The Fuel / Wash/Facilities and Youth Education Center is about a month behind the ADOPs building.

The Pattison Street Facility Grand Opening is tentatively scheduled for the afternoon of Thursday, November 10.

The advertisement to recruit new Community Advisory Committee members is out on the street, and applications are due October 7. If you know of anyone who might be interested in serving, please direct them to our website and complete the application.

The seven Operators from the class of 22-04 graduate Friday, September 23. The next class of Operators begin training on October 10.

October is Walk to School Month and there are a whole host of activities scheduled. Our Youth Education/Walk N Roll staff will be requesting a Proclamation from each of the respective jurisdictions.

Our COVID numbers are jumping a bit with the start of school.

Intercity Transit accepted applications from firms interested in assisting in the development of our Alternative Fuels Transition Plan. Developing and Issuing the Request for Qualifications and Proposals was a big step forward. Staff has interviewed firms and are moving through the remainder of the selection process. Staff intends to bring a contract forward to the Authority for approval in October.

At the October Authority meeting, we plan to recognize the Wall of Fame recipients and Driver and Maintenance Roadeo Teams who were honored at the Washington State Transportation Conference.

#### **AUTHORITY/CAC ISSUES**

**Vazquez** is participating in the Week without Driving Challenge to raise awareness of the challenges the people in the community face when they don't drive. She and her family will be riding transit.

Intercity Transit Authority/Community Advisory Committee Joint Meeting September 21, 2022
Page 15 of 15

### **ADJOURNMENT**

With no further business to come before the Authority, Chair Gilman adjourned the meeting at 7:42 p.m.

INTERCITY TRANSIT AUTHORITY

ATTEST

Patricis Messmer

Clark Gilman

Pat Messmer

Clerk to the Authority

Date Approved: October 5, 2022

Prepared by Pat Messmer, Clerk of the Board/ Executive Assistant, Intercity Transit